;‘ .Earth Negotiations Bulletin

A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

Vol. 9 No. 88 Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (1I1SD) Wednesday, 6 May 1998
CBD COP-4 HIGHLIGHTS TUESDAY information, and should include the development of national
5 MAY. 1998 human, technological and institutional capacities. KENYA

. stressed the importance of training and the transfer of technology,
On the second day of the Fourth Meeting of the Conference gjje MALAWI gtressed the impor%ance of buildiregional, »

the Parties of the Convention on Biological Diversity (COP-4), subregional and national capacities.

delegates met in Plenary throughout the day and addressed Delegates, includingnter alia, the UK, on behalf of the EU,

pending issues from COP-3, the clearing-house mechanism - co| OMBIA, PORTUGAL, INDIA, ITALY, MEXICO and

(CHM) and biosafety. The Ministerial Rodtable continued o taANzANIA, stressed that the COP should require an independent

meet throughout the morning to consider a draft summary of itggyjew of the pilot phase by the Secretariat so as to provide recom:

conclusions. In the afternoon, Klaus Topfer, &xtave Director of  endations and guidance in preparation for the wider functions

UNEP, addressed the Plenary. envisaged for the CHM. MALAWI remarked that without a
PLENARY review there can be no progress.
Bureau members for COP-4 were annweth Jozef Zlocha, PERU, CUBA, BRAZIL, PORTUGAL and others called for

(Slovakia), Stefan Schwager (Switzerland), Marcel Vernooy the COP to provide a clear mandate to the GEF, stating financial
(Netherlands), Sid Ali Rahadan (Algeria), Ralph Devoy (Nigeridgguirementéor the CHM. BRAZIL expressed its disappointment
Bernaditas Miller (Philippines), Mick Raga (Papua Nauinea), with the weak participation of GEF, calling it “preposterous”, and
Elaine Fisher (Jamaica) andli€iana Otiga Sampaio (Brabi expected the GEF to play a catalyst role. CUBA, COLOMBIA,
PENDING ISSUES The Plenary considered unresolved ~ TUNISIA, JAMAICA and others stressed that the GEF must
issues on voting procedures as well as financial rules for the  SUPpOrt national and regionaltiaitives, particularly in devel-
administration of the trust fund (UNEP/CBD/COP/4/3). The ~ Oping countries, and should consider the varying conditions in
SEYCHELLES, suppded by MALAWI, SENEGAL and ETHI- €ach country and region.
OPIA, requested that full representation of altieaibe ensured Some delegates, including HAITI, AUSTRALIA and JAPAN,
when a vote is taken. MALI stressed the importance of aIIowinggtressed synergy to avoid duplication of information within the
all Paties to express their participation in the vote. ETHIOPIA, €HM and with other UN-related conventions. TANZANIA, the
supported by the RUSSIAN FEDERATION, noted that funding EU, SLOVENIA, speaking for th€EE, COLOMBIA and others
may prohibit developing country participation and voting. also made suggestions. Some of these included: coordination
BRAZIL recalled that the Memorandum of Understanding with between national, regional, and international networks; national
the GEF must be considered when addressing administration dfformation systems; consolidation of regional networks; and
the trust fund. COLOMBIA suggested convening a group to subregional information sharing. The EU and INDIA stressed
discuss the matter. This was accepted by the Plenary. assistance to developing countries for implementation of national
CLEARING-HOUSE MECHANISM (CHM): The assess- CHMs, highlighting electronic communication and the internet.
ment and review of the CHM began with a report from the Secre- SOMOA, representing the Pacific Island Countries, expressed
tariat (UNEP/CBD/COP/4/8) on tplementation of the pilot ~concern that the CHM did not reflect the needs of Small Island
phase of the CHM. The report extended the pilot phase until th&€veloping States (SIDS), as they haweted resources to
end of 1998. Delegates stressed the essential role of the CHM §i§velop the CHM and often do not have access to the internet.
ensuring smooth implementation of the CBD and in facilitating ~ GERMANY supported an interactive information system to
and promoting technical and scientific cooperation. Delegates €ncourage broad public participation in the implementation of
supportedinter alia: recommendations from SBSTTA-3;the ~ CBD objectives and will continue to support other countries to
CHM’s needs-driven and decentralized approach; and particip&eVvelop their national CHMs.
tion of civil society. CANADA, supported byinter alia, MEXICO, ITALY and
CANADA said that work on the CHM should be a priority, butANZANIA, stressed the importance of the inclusion of indige-
that progress was too slow. INDONESIA said that the CHM is sfipUS network systems to facilitate communications between the
lacking, particularly with respect to human and technical resoul¢@rld’s indigenous peoples. ITALY stressed that NGO participa-
development, and that capacityilaling initiatives should begin tion in the CHM is necessary and should be encouraged.
as soon as possible so that when the pilot phase is completed the BELGIUM offered bilateral support under the Secretariat for
CHM will be readyfor implementation by Parties. Many dele- ~ countries to develop national focal points. PORTUGAL proposed
gates, includinginter alia, COLOMBIA, BURKINA FASO, a biogeographical approach to take into account cultural and

PERU, TUNISIA, MALAYSIA, TURKEY, TANZANIA and biological similarities. MALAWI underlined the importance of
MEXICO, underlined that the CHM should not be confined to awareness of the CHM so that Parties are aware of its function anc

how to utilize it.

This issue of th&arth Negotiations Bulletin @enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Deborah Davenport <ddavenp@emory.edu>, Laura Ivers <lauwei@ilseila
Mead <leila@interport.net> and Tiffany Prather <tprather@iisd.org>.Digital Wizardry by Jeff Anderson <janderson@iisd.caitoF e BEaimela Chasek, Ph.D.
<pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Editor is Langston James "Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of tharBuHetiNetherlands Ministry for
Development Cooperation, the Government of Canada (through CIDA) and the United States (through USAID). General SupBahteiin thering 1998 is provided by
the United Kingdom Department for International Development (DFID), the German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU), ti@f&wifsr Environment, Forests
and Landscape, the European Community (DG-XI), the Government of Norway, UNDP and the Ministry for the Environment ifFlcelanggfor the French version hias
been provided by ACCT/IEPF, with support from the French Ministry of Cooperation and the Québec Ministry of the EnvironWiiditfend@he Bulletin can be contacted
by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. [ISD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@igeick61 Portage Avenue East, [6th
Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y4, Canada. The opinions expressedHattreNegotiations Bulletiare those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of
11ISD and other funders. Excerpts from tBarth Negotiations Bulletimay be used in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate acadetito .citar
permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Managing Editor. Electronic versioBsl@#tthare sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be
found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. Thélisatenage was taken above New York City (¢)1998 The Living Earth, Inc. h{tp://
livingearth.com. For information on tiigarth Negotiations Bulletirsend e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




‘A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

Wednesday, 6 May 1998 @Ean‘h Negotiations Bulletin Vol. 9 No. 88 Page 2

BIOSAFETY: Veit Koester (Denmark), Chair of tiel Hoc The conclusions highlighted the need to integrate biosityer
Working Group on Biosafety (BSWG), reported on BSWG meetonsiderations into all sectoral adtiies either public or private in
ings since COP-3 and introduced the document on issues relatedttiare, while utilizing and encouraging the ecosystem approach.
biosafety(UNEP/CBD/COP/4/9). He underlined the BSWG’s Regarding tourism, the conclusiosnigygestednter alia, that:
strong commitment to complete its work in 1998, and reported thestainable development is necessary for poverty alleviation and
schedule for completion of the protocol on biosafety as outlinedfzt sustainable tourism could play a major role; guidelines be
the BSWG's fourth meeting in February 1998. The proposed formulated that are specific and practicalaarhocbody be
schedule calls for an additional meeting in August 1998 to created to prepare such global guidelines; in support of such guide
complete the group’s work as well as a meeting to be held in  lines; areview be carried out which includes threats and benefits to
December, followed by a two to three day extraordinary COP tdiodiversity from tourism and a compilation of best practices; and
adopt the protocol. Koester said that, failing to meet the Decentinat protected areas and SIDS be considered in particular.

1998 deadline, the COP could alternatively take place in FebruReggarding participation of the private sector, the conclusions
1999. Noting that evaluation of all governmentmaigsions by the suggestednter alia, that: the integration of biodiversity concerns
Working Group is imperative, and invoking the six month rule, heto sectoral activities at the national level woalsb secure inte-
requested the COP to adopt a 1 June deadiigovernment gration of the private sector; it should work under the guidance of
submissions to be considered at the December meeting. He alsmd in partnership with governments; while its role is important, it
reported that the BSWG budget is insufficient to cover the costésah no way a substitute for the role of developed countries in
completing the protocol and urged consideration of means for providing financial resources to developing countries; and that
funding. He added that funding is also necessary to ensure theguidelines could be considered to assist the private sector.
fullest possible participation of developing countries and countriesKlaus Topfer commended the Plenary on its dusions and

with economies in transition. declared UNEP’s commitment to the CBD. He stressed the need to
KENYA, on behalf of the Africa Region, NORWAY, coordinate with other biodiversity-related conventions, particu-

ANTIGUA AND BARBUDA, GAMBIA, JAPAN, the UK, on larly on trade and environment issues, as well as with other Rio

behalf of the EU, TANZANIA and PERU, speakifuy Conventions. Partipants discussed the cdasions at length and

GRULAC, stressed thesupport for the meeting schedule as  suggested numeroasnendments.

presented by Koester. JAPAN and NORWAY expressed flexi- Several participants complained that while the draft summary

bility concerning the finlézation of the protocol in February 1999reflected the main discussions, it was redbinced overall.

The UK stressed that the protocol should provide an adequate IBegjarding sectoral integration of biodiversity concerns, many

of safety in the field of biotechnology, and that it would only be participants said it would have been preferable to discuss either
useful with wide membership. MEXICO said the protocol shoulthore pertinent sectors or sectoral integration in general, and not
be in line with country-specific situations and, noting complicatedlely tourism, since not all tourism affects or is affected by biodi-
discussions at the domestic level, asked to extendedmdlide for  versity.

government submissions to 1 August and to postpone the date forOne participant said that the proposed guidelines on biodiver-
the final meeting to February 1999. ETHIOPIA, on behalf of thesity and sustainable tourism would be so general they would not be
G-77/ CHINA, suipported hastening the process and not going useful. Several participants requested that a deadline be estab-
beyond the planned period. The G-77/CHINA, the EU and sevdisiied for the formulation of such guidelines, preferably by COP-
other delegationaspportedetaining the current biosafety Burea. While many participansupported the creation of ad hoc

as opposed to any alternative. MOROCCO said the protocol body for this purpose, some suggested that it take the form of a
should be accompanied by approprizional legislation as well small, regionally balanced group, subject to appropriate funding.
as national implementation capacity. The MARSHALL However, others said the creation of such a body was premature,
ISLANDS, on behalf of Pacific Island States, expressed concetand that its necessity should first be addressed by the SBSTTA.
over developing countries’ ability to participate in the biosafety Some participants stressed the role of indigenous and local

meetings. The EU, the G#/CHINA, the MARSHALL communities in preserving biodivaty. Others questioned the
ISLANDS, and MOROCCO underlined the need to facilitate  degree to which tourism could alleviate poverty.
participation ofall countries. Several participants wediscouraged by what they perceived

In his address to the Plenary, Klaus Topfer, Etige Director to be a negative appraisal of the private sector. They said it was
of UNEP, contemplated the relationship between UNEP and théme to move beyond regulation to active partnership and the
CBD. He noted that UNEP has a sense of ownership of the CBprovision of useful economic instruments, such as incentives. An
due to its role in the formulation of the Convention, as well as itamended final statement on the outcome of the Ministerial Round-
support of the interim and permanent Secretariats. He highlightaflle will be presented to the COP for consideration on
several areas where UNEP could facilitate implementation of tii#ednesday morning.

CBD, including,nter alia: enhancement of cooperation between

biodiversity-related conventions; development of methodologies, IN THE CORRIDORS:In reaction to Tépfer’s speech in
guidelines and tools to assess marine and coastal, forest and aglenary, observers reminisced about a time when UNEP had the
cultural biodivesity; provision of legal advice and tedbal capacity and competence to undertake/coordinate the range of
support for the implementation of thedte biosafety protocol;  actions it has proposed. Most felt that until UNEP completes its
and the global taxonomy initiative. He lauded the GEF’s successorganization and demonstrates excellence in execution, Topfer
as the financial mechanism and stressed the need for continualvas not strategic in his comments, nor acting on the wishes of the
evaluation of GEF performance and for development of additio@averning Council and that he, like his predecessor, had been
funding sources. He envisioned interlinking the CBD with the poorly advised.

UNFCCC and CCD inmler to maximize avkable financial

resources. THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY
MINISTERIAL ROUNDTABLE Pontification on the potential implications of precedence

The Ministerial Roudtable convened for its second session &§tween international agreements on issues surrounding biosafety
Tuesday morning. Chair Jozef Zlocha,$tlent of COP-4, Plenary will convene indefinitely in Hall A at 10:@én.

presented a draft summary of the Roundtable’s conclusions on: the
integration of biodiversity concerns into sectorahatiés;
tourism; and the participation of the private sector.



